
NOTE:  The Council will take a 5-minute recess at 8:00 pm. 

     HAMPDEN TOWN COUNCIL 

 HAMPDEN MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

 AGENDA 

MONDAY      DECEMBER 4TH, 2017   7:00 P.M. 

6:00 p.m. – Finance & Administration Committee 

A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

B. CONSENT AGENDA

1. SIGNATURES

2. SECRETARY’S REPORTS

a. November 6th, 2017 Council Meeting Minutes

3. COMMUNICATIONS

a. Correspondence from the Recreation Committee to the Town Council
regarding the Western Avenue Recreation Area

b. Notification regarding the pay-off of the 1997 General Obligation Bonds
c. Update on the October 30th wind event
d. Notification regarding the MRC annual membership meeting to be held

Wednesday December 13th, from 3:00 – 5:00 at the Hampden Public
Safety Training room.

e. Notification regarding the MDOT Region 4 Protective Coatings –
Interstate Bridges Project

f. Notification regarding newly enacted Public Law 174 requiring
inventory of nonproductive industrial/manufacturing sites

g. Renewal of Victualer’s Licenses for Angelo’s, Pat’s Pizza and Subway

4. REPORTS

a. Finance Committee Minutes – None
b. Infrastructure Committee Minutes – October 23, 2017
c. Planning & Development Committee Minutes – None
d. Services Committee Minutes – None

C. PUBLIC COMMENTS

D. POLICY AGENDA



MONDAY           DECEMBER 4th, 2017   7:00 P.M. 

2 

1. NEWS, PRESENTATIONS & AWARDS

2. PUBLIC HEARINGS

3. NOMINATIONS – APPOINTMENTS – ELECTIONS

4. OLD BUSINESS

5. NEW BUSINESS

a. Request for Council authorization for the transfer of $224,665.43, plus
any amount added as a result of close-out of the FY17 Audit, from
Recreation Clearing Account (1-199-01) to Recreation Area Reserve
(3-767-00) for the purpose of completing transition from enterprise
method of accounting to revenue and expense method of accounting
for Recreation Department – referral from Finance & Administration
Committee

b. Request for Council authorization for the transfer of $58,452.92, plus
any amount added as a result of close-out of the FY17 Audit, from Pool
Clearing Account (1-111-05) to Pool Reserve (3-771-00) for the
purpose of completing transition from enterprise method of accounting
to revenue and expense method of accounting for Pool Department –
referral from Finance & Administration Committee

c. Request for Council authorization for the expenditure of an amount up
to $2,592.00 from the Personnel Reserve Account (3-733-00) for the
purpose of offsetting costs associated with payroll expenses for a
temporary part-time worker – referral from Finance & Administration
Committee

d. Request for Council authorization for the expenditure of an amount up
to $2,542.04 from the Municipal Building Reserve Account (3-702-00)
for repairs to HVAC at Town Office – referral from Finance &
Administration Committee

e. Request for Council authorization for the expenditure of an amount up
to $1,300 from the Municipal Building Reserve Account (3-702-00) for
repairs to the leaking Town Office roof – referral from Finance &
Administration Committee

E. COMMITTEE REPORTS

F. MANAGER’S REPORT



MONDAY           DECEMBER 4th, 2017   7:00 P.M. 

3 

G. COUNCILORS’ COMMENTS

H. ADJOURNMENT







































INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE MEETING 

Monday, October 23, 2017 

MINUTES 

Attending: 
Mayor David Ryder, Chair  DPW Director Sean Currier 
Councilor Ivan McPike  Public Safety Director Joe Rogers  
Councilor Dennis Marble  Town Clerk Paula Scott 
Councilor Terry McAvoy Admin Asst. Danielle Simons 
Councilor Mark Cormier  Kyle Corbeil, P.E., Woodard & Curran 
Town Manager Angus Jennings Curt Slininger, Kiwanis 

12 residents of the community 

Mayor Ryder called the meeting to order at 6 PM. 

1. MINUTES – September 25, 2017 Minutes were unanimously approved.

2. OLD BUSINESS
a. Announcement of MDOT award of flashing pedestrian beacon to

Hampden; request for authorization of up to $4,000.00 from the Streets &
Roads reserve fund for engineering of new crosswalk across Route 1A
with ADA complaint “landing areas” nears Irving Station and Hannibal
Hamlin Place – Manager Manager Jennings explained the history behind the

crosswalk by Cottage Street and 1A.  This crosswalk is not ADA compliant and

does not meet MDOT specifications; on one side of the road the crosswalk

terminates within the Cottage Street traveled way and on the other side it

terminates in a driveway to a single-family home. The Town was recently

awarded a flashing set of pedestrian beacons. The goal is to add a new

crosswalk between Hannibal Hamlin Place and the Kiwanis/Irving driveway

and to install the pedestrian beacons.

Mayor Ryder asked what is ADA compliant? Kyle Corbeil of Woodard & 

Curran stated that some crosswalks can’t exist in certain terrain, the crosswalk 

must have a landing. 

Mayor Ryder stated we have crosswalks that don’t land anywhere.  He 

referred to a crosswalk on Constitution Ave. Director Currier stated there are a 

number of crosswalks and we are taking them one at a time, focusing initially 

on those that receive a lot of foot traffic such as in the Town Center. 

B-4-b



Councilor Marble stated he was not sure about the proposed location at Irving 

and Kiwanis, and a path to the VFW complex/fields.  

 

Public comments: 

Priscilla Bisher of Cottage Street spoke about the importance of have a 

crosswalk closer to the schools for the children to use. 

 

Cheryl Morse of Main Road North spoke in favor of the crosswalk at Cottage 

Street. 

 

Erica Bisher of Cottage Street spoke in favor of the crosswalk at Cottage 

Street and 1A. 

 

Deanna Llenera of Main Road North spoke in favor of the Cottage Street 

crosswalk, and the safety for the people using it.   

 

Quinton Bisher and Brody Simons both of Cottage Street spoke about no one 

stopping for them when they are at the crosswalk.  They run across 1A from 

Cottage Street. 

 

Councilor Marble asked if they would use the Irving crosswalk. 

 

Frank Bisher of Cottage Street stated he thinks it is a dangerous situation.  

 

Tony Llerena of Main Road North asked about the enforcement of people not 

stopping at crosswalks.  

 

Christa Anderson 5 Cottage Street stated her husband was rear ended by the 

Cottage Street crosswalk when stopping for someone in the “unmarked” 

crosswalk.  

 

Kyle Corbeil from Woodard & Curran explained about traffic calming, and how 

it helps to slow traffic down. 

 

Mayor Ryder stated he would like to keep the Cottage Street crosswalk. 

 

Chief Rogers stated that he could not stop people from using the side of the 

road with no sidewalk. Most of the accidents have been due to distracted 

driving in this area. Engineering, education, and enforcement was discussed. 

Chief Rogers said a blinking/flashing lights at the crosswalk is a good idea, it 

draws the attention of drivers more effectively than just a crosswalk.  



Debra Levine stated she walks her dogs, and asked if you could have lights 

without the crosswalk.  

 

Councilor McAvoy asked about a red light instead of yellow. Director Currier 

stated that it has to be yellow under MUTCD (Manual of Uniform Traffic 

Control Devices). 

 

Priscilla Bisher of Cottage Street asked about a walking lane? 

 

Town Manager Jennings said he would invite a price quote for engineering 

associated with two crosswalks – a new one near Kiwanis/Irving, and the 

existing non-compliant crosswalk at Cottage Steet. He will aim for the 

November 6th Finance Committee meeting. 

 

b. Update on sewer financial commitments to review whether available 
funds will cover anticipated projects including but not limited to the Grist 
Mill Bridge and Route 1A reconstruction costs; improvements to meter 
pit at the Bangor/Hampden line; collection system repairs or upgrades 
that may be identified by CCTV work; and costs for sewer pump stations; 
or whether additional revenues and/or borrowing authorization may be 
needed – Manager Jennings summarized the materials in the packet and 

updated the Committee on the sewer fund financial status.  He expects that, 

when the FY17 audit is closed out, it will show approximately $125,000 in 

revenues. Manager Jennings stated this is informational only, but that he will 

continue working with Director Currier to bring forward a specific proposal for 

Council authorization regarding how best to manage the FY17 revenues in 

light of current projects and system needs.  

 

c. Summary of Hampden Capital Program work needed for FY19 budget 
cycle – Manager Jennings summarized the materials in the packet and gave 

an informational update to the Committee. When he began in 2015 the Capital 

Program hadn’t been updated in almost a decade. While significant progress 

has been made, he said that there is a considerable amount of work to be 

done to get the Capital Program to where he would like it for the FY19 budget 

cycle. He said this should be a central focus of the Infrastructure Committee’s 

work and that the Capital Program should be a standing item on the 

Committee’s agenda. 

 

d. Woodard & Curran engineering report on sewer meter pit at 
Bangor/Hampden line – Kyle Corbeil from Woodard & Curran gave a brief 

overview of the sewer meter    pit report (in layman terms) for the Committee.  

Pit was installed below grade. Palmer-Bowlus needs right hydraulic conditions.  



Was installed in the early 1980’s.  Gravity line.  Bangor has started to control 

their CSO’s by throttling flow.  This backs up the system. 

 

Manager Jennings asked how does this throttling affect our cost? Kyle Corbeil 

stated it is difficult to estimate.  You could record when they are throttling, 

historical SCADA information. The accuracy of the sewer flow was questioned.   

 

The Committee agreed this item should be added to the Capital Program, with 

the cost estimates, so it can be reviewed with other sewer infrastructure 

needs. 

 
e. Update for MDOT public meeting regarding Route 1A and Grist Mill 

Bridge reconstruction – Manager Jennings stated this is informational, but 

he noted that the cost estimates had increased from $4.65M to $5.37M and 

that, since Hampden is responsible for 10% of costs, this would affect 

Hampden’s costs.  However he also noted that the MDOT Project Manager 

had informed him that the updated estimate is conservative; the actual costs 

won’t be known until the project is put out to bid. The transcript and map of the 

project have been posted to the Town’s website. 

 

3. NEW BUSINESS  
 

a. Update on MDOT Rte 9/202 (Western Ave.) resurfacing (ant. Summer 
2018) – There are a couple items to work through with MDOT related to the 

proposed resurfacing, which is expected to happen instead of the BACTS 

projects that had been programmed for this stretch of road. The BACTS 

projects would have included a sidewalk, but also would have required a local 

cost match. The resurfacing project would not include a replacement 

sidewalk, but does not have a local cost match. If the Town would like to 

replace the sidewalk along Western Avenue, which is showing wear, this 

would be a local cost and would require coordination with MDOT. 

 

b. Discussion of cost for spray foam insulation at Kiwanis Civic Center – 

Manager Jennings gave a brief summary stating the cost and benefits of 

insulating the Kiwanis, where the foundation is currently showing cracks that 

surely increase the building’s heating cost. Councilor McAvoy asked if the 

holes could be filled. Mayor Ryder asked if we could do the cracks in the 

foundation. Director Currier stated that spray foam goes over surfaces better. 

He said that, while Kiwanis has made some investments in the property 

during its lease, some maintenance has been deferred. He said if it’s Town 

property we ought to take some care of it. No decision was made regarding 

whether to proceed with the insulation. 



 

4. STAFF UPDATES 
a. Anticipated Fiberight correspondence regarding sewer rates – 

Manager Jennings said he expects that Fiberight may request different 

sewer rates. He said he does not see a basis for differing rates in the 

Sewer Ordinance, and further that, because of the Sewer Fund’s financial 

condition, any reduction in rate would simply pass costs along to the other 

ratepayers, who are already absorbing significant rate increases. The 

Committee agreed, but also agreed with Manager Jennings that, if such a 

request is put forward, it could properly be considered by the Finance 

Committee if an Infrastructure Committee meeting is not pending. 

 

b. Confirmation of policy to install decorative flags on utility poles in 
Town Center instead of holiday lights this season – DPW will put the 

banners up. Councilor Marble made a motion to refer to Finance $6730.00 

for the banners, seconded by Councilor McAvoy.  Vote was unanimous in 

favor. 

 

c. Update: MEPDES permit for CSO Maine Waste Discharge License, 
due Dec. 1 – This is a work item underway that is required every 5 years. 

The Town received assistance from Woodard & Curran for the previous 

report but Director Currier is working to complete this in-house. 

 

d. Update on DEP working group regarding potential new licensing 
requirement applicable to Satellite (sewer) Collection System – 

Director Currier stated that MDEP does not have authority to regulate 

satellite sewer collection systems such as Hampden.  They are looking at 

fees.   Must have certified operator, O & M Manual takes a year to create. 

Councilor Marble asked what date for the working group report. Director 

Currier stated January 1st.  He said we are responsibly maintaining the 

system, and that new regulations would be targeted toward systems that 

don’t have good management in place, but that Hampden would need to 

formalize and more extensively document its practices. This would divert 

limited staff time away from the actual work, as more time would be 

needed for paperwork. Councilor McAvoy asked if this could be a permit 

by rule, assuming we are doing it right. Director Currier stated there are 

areas where we would be seen as deficient, such as right now we have 4 

pump stations that don’t have backup generators. 

 

5. PUBLIC AND STAFF COMMENTS – None.  

 



6. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS – Mayor Ryder had concerns over a 

culvert on Old County Road sagging. 

 

7. ADJOURN 
 

 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

 

 



  
TO:  Finance Committee and Town Council 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  November 30, 2017 

RE:  Transition from Enterprise to Revenue/Expense Budgeting 
 

 

Please find enclosed the memo from the Auditor reviewed at the previous Finance 
Committee meeting. 
 

Background: A review of Town financial records shows that the policy intent of 
“enterprise” budgeting was to provide a non-taxation revenue source for Recreation 
and Pool reserve needs instead of budgeting taxation funds into those reserve 
accounts. As a result, these are reported as “committed” funds in Town Audits. 
 

“Enterprise” budgeting for Recreation began in the 1990s.  A review of archived 
accounting filed dating back to FY05 shows that no budgeted funds were put toward 
Recreation Reserve over that period of time (although $10,000 was budgeted toward 
the Playground Reserve in both FY05 and FY07, totaling $20,000). 
 

In FY17, $80,000 was placed in the Recreation Reserve to fund the ongoing work 
related to the Pool/Town Building site. An additional $10,000 was budgeted toward 
this account, for these, purposes, in the FY18 Budget. These were the first budgeted 
funds added to the Recreation Reserve account since FY05, at least.  (Access to 
pre-FY05 TRIO accounting records is not readily available).  
 

“Enterprise” budgeting for Pool began in 2013.  A review of adopted Town Budgets 
shows that, from FY05 through FY12, the Town’s operating budget committed $10-
15,000 per fiscal year to the Pool Reserve account (a total of $110,000 over that 
time). No funds were budgeted toward Pool Reserve in FY13 through FY16. In FY17 
and FY18, $5,000 each year was placed in Pool Reserve toward the cost of 
repainting the pool interior.  

 

Town budgeting over the period of time that “enterprise” budgeting was used supports 
other references (i.e. Town Manager memos, meeting minutes) that the “enterprise” 
method was intended instead of budgeting reserve funds. Funds budgeted toward Rec 
and Pool Reserves in FY17 and FY18 were toward specific initiatives (Pool site) and 
repairs (Pool painting), and do not begin to cover known and anticipated costs of future 
investments toward Rec and Pool facilities (as set out in the Capital Program). 
 

In order to put the Town in a better position to absorb these future costs, and to 
maintain previous policy, and public commitments, regarding the use of Rec and Pool 
program proceeds, I recommend authorizing the transfers included on the agenda (from 
Rec Clearing to Rec Reserve, and from Pool Clearing to Pool Reserve). FY17 numbers 
will not be final until the Audit is complete. 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-5-a





Town Budgeted Funds toward certain Reserve accounts, FY02‐FY18

Acct Reserve Account
FY02 
Budget

FY03 
Budget

FY04 
Budget

FY05 
Budget

FY06 
Budget

FY07 
Budget

FY08 
Budget

FY09 
Budget

FY10 
Budget

FY11 
Budget

FY12 
Budget

FY13 
Budget

FY14 
Budget

FY15 
Budget

FY16 
Budget

FY17 
Budget

FY18 
Budget

3‐767‐00 Rec Area Res ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            80,000$     10,000$    
3‐768‐00 Playground ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            10,000$     ‐$            10,000$     ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            5,000$       
3‐769‐00 Rec/Conserv ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$           
3‐771‐00 Pool Facility ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            10,000$     10,000$     15,000$     15,000$     15,000$     15,000$     15,000$     15,000$     ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            5,000$        5,000$       

Source: Angus Jennings, Town Manager, 11/30/17










































